
Town of Blowing Rock 
 

Request for Council Action 
                                 
FROM:  Town Manager 
SUBJECT: Laurel Lane Slope Failure and Sidewalk Repair 
TO: Town Council  
DATE: November 14, 2017 
REQUESTED BY:  Manager  
              
Public Hearing  Yes     No     Will be required      Not required   
Properly Advertised     Yes     No     Will be required      Not required 
  
BACKGROUND:  
On Monday, October 23, 2017, Blowing Rock received an unprecedented rainfall, characterized by a 
seven-inch rainfall over a fifteen-hour period, with four and one-half inches of that falling over a three-
hour period in the afternoon. Runoff exceeded the capabilities of our storm drainage systems in many 
areas. One area affected was Laurel Lane. Broyhill Lake was very full, and the spillway functioned as 
designed allowing for safe discharge of the stormwater into the stream below the lake.  

Stormwater also flowed down Wonderland Trail and Laurel Lane, exiting the roadway by flowing over the 
road shoulder across from the lake. The runoff flowing down the slope caused a slide or slope failure. The 
result was that some of the dirt along the edge of the road and face of the slope slid down slope and 
compromised a couple of trees in the process. Fortunately, damage was limited, and town staff recognized 
the situation almost immediately and closed the east-bound lane to traffic with cones and barricades. We 
also had a section of sidewalk compromised by similar, excessive stormwater at another location further 
north on the side of Laurel Lane toward the ballfield and the Lake.  

Recognizing that these affected slide areas were vulnerable and could be further compromised with any 
additional large rains, we reached out to contractors to get an immediate evaluation and plan for 
stabilization. We solicited bids from Iron Mountain, Inc., Mountain Crest, Inc., and JW Hampton, Inc. Mike 
Wilcox and I both thought that we needed to get a contractor committed to the repair as soon as possible, 
fearing that most contractors would be dealing with similar situations all around the area and would be 
unable to address our issue in a timely manner.  

We called McGill, Inc. and they too evaluated the slide area and concurred, for the most part, with the 
evaluations and potential remedies posed by the contractors. However, they wanted to call in a 
geotechnical engineering firm to evaluate further because of the proximity of the slide area to the Broyhill 
Lake, Laurel Lane and the discharge area near the stream below. It took several days to get this firm on 
site, but they came and produced the report provided in your Town Council Packet. This company is ECS 
Southeast, LLP and they agreed with most of the remedial action proposed, and added some additional 
requirements including recommending a much more thorough and long-term solution for handling the 
stormwater in the area and the need to incorporate geotechnical fabric under the proposed rock armoring 
on the slope face.  

The initial evaluation and quotes from the three contractors represent the first steps in the recommended 
repair. The lowest bid from a capable contractor came from Iron Mountain, Inc. and is $41,500 for the 
storm damage. This work provides for stabilization of the slope face at the slide area and provides removal 



of the substrate and loose vegetation and then covering the slope with a geotextile fabric to help prevent 
additional soil loss on the slope. Large boulders will be placed on top of this fabric at the toe of the slope, 
followed by large rip-rap material and eventually, dirt to provide a base for vegetation. Following this first 
phase of the repair, there will be additional stability studies with core boring to determine the consistency 
of the substrate in the area, followed by evaluations to determine if any additional work that might be 
required, including stormwater management study to prevent uncontrolled stormwater from causing a 
similar situation in the future. 

The sidewalk repair is also included in this quotation of $41,500, which includes additional fill dirt, two 
drainage structures and pipe and a new section of sidewalk. The entire compromised sidewalk has to be 
replaced beyond the affected area until it reaches sound subgrade. This area also abuts another section 
of sidewalk with severe spalling, which can be replaced at the same time for an additional $2,500, making 
the total expenditure for this contracted work $44,000.  

Future expenses are certain for engineering, core boring, and potential repairs revealed as necessary by 
this additional study.  

STATEMENT OF PLAN CONSISTENCY: 
It is the opinion of staff that the proposed action        IS    IS NOT consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan for Blowing Rock.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:     

1. Photographs of damage 
2. Engineering Report from ECS Southeast LLP 
3. McGill – Proposal for Engineering Services / Emergency Store Event Response 
4. Quote on repair (Phase 1) from Iron Mountain, Inc. 
5. Capital Project Ordinance 2017-13 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   
A course of “no action” is not a possibility. To leave the area “as is” would pose a risk of additional damage 
to the slope area and eventually undermine Laurel Lane. Therefore, McGill, ECS, and staff recommend 
moving forward with Phase 1 as presented in the ECS report and engage Iron Mountain, Inc. to repair the 
immendiate need for stabilization of the slope and support Laurel Lane to allow both vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic to resume in the affected areas.  

These repairs are not included in the FY 2017-18 budget. The attached Capital Project Ordinance request 
will be necessary to accommodate the repair by utilizing Fund Balance.   

COUNCIL ACTION: 



 

















November 8, 2017 

Mr. Ed Evans 
Town of Blowing Rock 
1036 Main Street 
Blowing Rock, North Carolina 28605 

Re: Town of Blowing Rock  
Slope Repair Recommendations 
Blowing Rock, North Carolina 
ECS Project No. 08-12534 

Dear Mr. Evans: 

As you are aware, ECS Southeast, LLP (ECS), Brian Newman, P.E. (McGill Associates) and 
Mike Wilcox (Town of Blowing Rock) conducted a site visit on November 2, 2017.  The site visit 
was to observe ground loss on Laurel Lane at the outflow structure.  We understand during a 
rainfall event the lake level rose significantly engaging the outlet control structure, but reportedly 
the road did not overtop. 



Based on our observations, it is our opinion that the ground loss is generally caused by surface 
erosion.  The slope repair process can be completed in several phases to allow vehicle traffic on 
the existing roadway while a long term design and repair is implemented.  The Phases for the 
repair are outlined below.  Ultimately, the final goal of this project is to provide a fully stabilized 
slope that can be naturally landscaped to return the area to its Park setting and ensure future 
stability of the embankment.  

Phase I – Initial Slope Repair: 
The initial phase of the project is focuses on immediate slope repair should consist of removal of 
all vegetation in the affected area and lose soil.  A geotextile fabric, such as Mirafi 140N, should 
be placed on top of the slope to cover the exposed soil on the slope face and attached to the 
slope in general accordance with the detail below.  A layer of heavy rip-rap armoring should 
then be placed over the geotextile fabric.  Once the slope is reconstructed the road may be 
repaired to allow for traffic.  This work should be completed promptly to prevent additional soil 
losses on the slope face and further impact to the roadway.  

Phase II – Hydraulic and Geotechnical Study: 
This phase should include a hydraulic study to evaluate the drainage patterns of Laurel Land 
and Wonderland Trail and geotechnical exploration to evaluate the overall stability of the 
embankment.  The geotechnical exploration should include a subsurface exploration using 
borings along with global stability analysis to analyze the overall stability of the embankment. 
We anticipate the exploration and study phase would take one to two months to complete from 
field work to complete the borings and drainage mapping to issuance of the final report. 



Phase III – Repair Design: 
This phase should include the design and bidding of the new storm drainage and a slope 
stabilization system.  During this phase the storm drainage and final slope stabilization repair 
designs will be completed and Construction Drawings and Specifications will be prepared and 
reviewed by the city to ensure all needs are meet including aesthetic appearance of the final 
slope stabilization.  After the Drawings and Specifications are complete, the project should be 
bid to several contractors.  We anticipate the design phase would take one to two months to 
complete, and another month for bidding and procurement. 

Phase IV - Construction: 
The final phase of the project is the implementation and construction of the revised storm 
drainage and final slope stabilization system.  We anticipate the construction of the final 
stabilization repair would take several months to complete. 

If you have any questions concerning the above recommendations, please do not hesitate to 
contact us. 

Respectfully, 

ECS SOUTHEAST, LLP 

Morgan E. Hansen, P.E. Marc F. Plotkin, P.E. 
Geotechnical Project Manager Principal Engineer 

NC Registration No. 039950 



 

   IRON MOUNTAIN CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 
“Safety & Quality 1st”    Samuel E. Icenhour, President 
      Kimberly Hayworth, CEO/ Secretary    
 
November 8, 2017 
 
Attention: Mr. Mike Wilcox, Public Works Director 

Town of Blowing Rock  
From:  Sam Icenhour, President 
 
Quotation for: Laurel Lane Flood Repairs  
 

1. Project #1 Includes the following scope details:  
                        -30 tons Class 2 
                        -Up to 300 tons Class B stone backfill 
                        -Remove trees/leave stumps  
  - Geo-tech fabric under rip rap  

Lump sum   $20,000.00 
 

2. Project #2 includes the following scope details:  
                        -Install (2) curb inlets with hooded grates and frames 
                        -Install 60' x 24" HDPE pipe 
                        -Line stream channel with Class B stone for stream bank protection 
                        -Demo up to 80' x 5' sidewalk 
                        -Form, pour and finish 5' wide sidewalk replacement 
                        -Haul in suitable fill to replace washed out backfill area 
                         

Lump sum   $21,500.00 
 

3. Project # 3 
Scope of work: Remove & replace 50 lf of spalled sidewalk.  
 

Lump sum   $2500.00 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 

Iron Mountain Construction Co., Inc. PO Box 24, Mountain City, TN 37683 Phone (423) 727-4483 

 Fax (423) 727-4200   kimhayworth@ironmtncc.com  www.ironmtncc.com 

Licensed NC,TN, VA & SC, NC HUB Certified WBE, TN HUB Certified WBE, NCDOT Prequalified  

http://www.ironmtncc.com/
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